

The Director Of Environment And Neighbourhoods

With the exception of those matters where an appropriate Executive Member¹, has directed that the delegated authority should not be exercised and that the matter should be referred to the Executive Board, for consideration², the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods³ is authorised to discharge the following functions:

1. Local choice functions which have been assigned to the Executive (see Section 1 of Part 3 of the Constitution):
 - (a) the service of an abatement notice in respect of a statutory nuisance;
 - (b) the passing of a resolution that schedule 2 of the Noise and Statutory Nuisance Act 1993 should apply in the authority's area;
 - (c) the inspection of the authority's area to detect any statutory nuisance;
 - (d) the investigation of any complaint as to the existence of a statutory nuisance; and
 - (e) the control of pollution or management of air quality.

2. Any function⁴ of the Executive in relation to
 - (a) the authority's role as housing authority⁶ excluding those functions which the authority has agreed, with the approval of the Secretary of State, that another person should exercise as agent of the authority⁷;
 - (b) the condition and occupation of housing;
 - (c) caravan sites and land occupied by travelling people;
 - (d) area based housing led regeneration;

¹ An "appropriate Executive Member" is the Leader or other appropriate portfolio-holding Member of the Executive Board

² The Director may consider in respect of any matter that the delegated authority should not be exercised and that it should be referred to the Executive Board for consideration

³ The fact that a function has been delegated to the Director does not require the Director to give the matter his/her personal attention and the Director may arrange for such delegation to be exercised by an officer of suitable experience and seniority. However the Director remains responsible for any decision taken pursuant to such arrangements.

⁴ "Function" for these purposes is to be construed in a broad and inclusive fashion and includes the doing of anything which is calculated to facilitate or is conducive or incidental to the discharge of any of the specified functions. The delegation also includes the appointment of the Director as "proper officer" for the purpose of any function delegated to him/her under these arrangements.

⁶ Including functions relating to Supporting People

⁷ These agreements have been made in accordance with Section 27 Housing Act 1985 - see further addendum 1

Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive Functions)

- (e) community planning and community initiatives;
- (f) community safety and the reduction of crime and disorder (including the management of closed circuit TV);
- (g) vocational training and allied services for persons over compulsory school age, and the promotion of arrangements to assist persons to obtain employment and employers to obtain employees.
- (h) environmental and consumer protection, health and safety other than in relation to Council employees, public health (including the investigation and control of notifiable diseases);
- (i) animal welfare;
- (j) development and implementation of municipal waste policy; and
- (k) streetscene management and related enforcement functions, including parking enforcement, street and gully cleansing, refuse collection, grounds maintenance, waste management, public conveniences, graffiti removal, fly-tipping and dog warden services.

Deleted: the management and oversight of area based working arrangements;¶
¶
(h)

Deleted: i

Deleted: j

Deleted: k

Deleted: l